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, ST. JOHN'SINN
MYRTLE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA

John M. Belk, Charlotte, N. C., Owner
Wheatley-Whi t & A iates, Charlotte, N. C., Architect
Ray V. Wasdell, Charlotte, N. C., Engineer
Dargan Construction Company, Myrtle Beach, S. C., General Contractor
Pee Dee Building Industries, Marion, S. C., Masonry Unit Producer

Poised elegantly among golden sands and green-fringed palmettos,
St. John’s Inn is a modern architectural gem set in the famed
Grand Strand at Myrtle Beach.

Surrounding its guests with an atmosphere of calm serenity, the
Inn offers deluxe accommodations in three stories—with the effect
of privacy in a luxurious headquarters for oceanside vacationing.

Here, too, is a dramatic use of lightweight aggregate masonry
units. In exposed exterior and interior walls Solite masonry units
create pleasing textural patterns.

Structurally the Solite lightweight aggregates lend their natural
advantages of dead load reduction, high insulation and fire resis-
tance properties.

A charming example in a semitropical mood, St. John's Inn reveals
architectural skills employing modern materials to optimum benefit.

See our catalog in Sweet’s @

ETYLSF,

Lightweight Masonry Units and Structural Concrete
4425 Randolph Road, Charlotte, North Carolina 28211




Annunciation Catholic Church
Havelock, N. C.

Structural Engineer:
Charles H. Kahn

General Contractor:
Luther T. Rogers, Ir

Masonry Contractor:
E. Odell Register Ageless Architecture through Brick Beauty
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The 7000 ft. of Aluminum Pipe Railing used on this job will never

have to be painted or replaced due to rust, thus eliminating
maintenance cost.

North Buffalo Creek Sewage Treatment Plant
Greensboro, N. C.

Engineers: Hazen & Sawyer, New York, N. Y.
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“Art is man’s nature,
Nature is God’s Art”

Buckingham® Slate is a wondrous product of
nature awaiting the ingenuity and vision

of man to give it place and meaning in architecture.
In his striking designs for the font, communion
table and pulpit of the United Presbyterian
Church of the Atonement, Wheaton, Maryland,
Benjamin P. Elliott, A.l.A., G.R.A. felt that

the selection of Buckingham® Slate was, in effect,
utilizing a material that reflected creation.

The beauty and dignity of the natural material
was treated with respect and executed with
expert craftsmanship.

There are many exciting and practical uses of
unique Buckingham®Slate to meet the challenge
of your designs. See our roofing, flooring

and panel catalogs in Sweets Architectural

and Interior Design Files and in Stone Catalog.

i
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 Photo by: J. Alexander Studio

H D BUCKINGHAM-VIRGINIA SLATE CORPORATION

. 1103 EAST MAIN STREET - RICHMOND,VIRGINIA 23219 - TELEPHONE 703-643-8365




SPEGIFY
BORDEN

BORDEN FACE BRICK BORDEN PAVING BRICK

for light and heavy construction for patios, sidewalks, foyers, floors
BORDEN STRUCTURAL TILE BORDEN HANDMADE BRICK

for load and non-load bearing structurals for homes, offices, fireplaces, accent walls
BORDEN SLAB FILLER TILE BORDEN SPECIAL SHAPES

for economy and insulation of concrete floors for use with handmade brick

[Borden
BRICK AND TILE CO.

SANFORD-GOLDSBORO-DURHAM, NORTH CAROLINA

Specification, price and delivery details supplied on request to home
office: P.O. Box 886, Goldsboro, N.C. 27530 Phone 919/734-3771




After the Revolution, and an in-
crease in westward expansion,
it became obvious that New Bern
was no longer a suitable central
location for the capital. The Gen-
eral Assembly met at various
towns throughout the state, and
each legislature discussed the
need for a permanent seat of gov-
ernment. The Hillsborough Con-
vention of 1788 provided for the
location of a capital situated with-
in ten miles of the Isaac Hunter
plantation in the newly estab-
lished County of Wake. A petition
brought to the General Assembly
by Joel Lane in 1771 created
Wake County from Cumberland,
Johnston, and Orange Counties.
During the Revolution the 1781
General Assembly met in the
hills of Wake at the house of
Joel Lane at Bloomington, and in
1788 they paid him 1378 Pounds
for one thousand acres of land on
which to build the town of Ra-
leigh. The town was surveyed by

PART Il

ARCHITECTURE IN
NORTH CAROLINA

1700-1900

Lawrence Wodehouse

William Christmas in April, 1792.
He designated a central square
and four quadrants, each with its
own square. This plan was rather
similar to William Penn'’s plan for
Philadelphia. Rhodham Atkins, a
carpenter from Massachusetts,
began the construction of a State
House in the central Union Square
in 1792, and within two years it
was sufficiently complete to be
used. One of the first houses con-
structed in Raleigh, and the old-
est now standing, was begun in
1794 for State Treasurer John
Haywood (Plate XIlI). It still stands
as a dignified “double pile” on
the north side of New Bern Ave-
nue only two blocks from Union
Square. The interior woodwork is
quiterefined. At the rear of the
Haywood House are a series of
outhouses andbarns.

In 1800 the population of Ra-
leigh had risen to 669; by 1820
there existed a large brick

Indian Queen Tavern, a Metho-
dist Church (1808 and 1811), a
public school (1810), a Baptist
Church (1818), the 1818 Building
of State Bank of North Carolina
and an Episcopal Church(1820).

By 1818 the State house (Plate
XIIl) was considered too small,
and Irvin Nichols Sr. and Jr.
were employed to remodel and
enlarge it. The capital was dam-
aged by fire in 1830 and was
destroyed in 1831. For the con-
struction of a new building
Ithiel Town, A. J. Davis, and
David Paton were contracted to
design the new structure; all
were architects by profession.®

This is the period which pro-
duced the designer trained in
architecture through apprentice-
ship. Whereas the architect of
the eighteenth century designed
within the limitations of rules of
proportion and relied upon copy-
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books of the leading designers
in the field, the nineteenth
century designer was liberated
from antiquity by the Romantic
Movement. This movement
sought liberalism in form and sub-
ject matter, an emphasis on
feeling and originality, and a
sympathetic interest in primitive
nature, mediaevalism, and the
mystical. This love of nature and
idealization of freedom spread
from painting, poetry, and land-
scape architecture to all the arts.
Even the work of the classicist
designers evolved into a ““Neo-
Classicism” or “Romantic-
Classicism,”” as it is more usually
designated. Therefore, it is not
surprising that the design forms
resulting from the French Ro-
mantic-Classicists of the mid-
eighteenth century, and the
English  Romantic  mediaeval
gothic revival of the late eigh-
teenth and early nineteenth
centuries were slowly intro-
duced into America.

Thomas Jefferson was appointed
ambassador plenipotentiary to
Paris by Congress in 1782. On
returning to Virginia he designed
the capitol at Richmond, based
upon the Madison Caree at Nimes,
France. An English architect,
Benjamin Henry Latrobe, a Ro-
mantic-Classicist apprenticed to
C. R. Cockrell, later helped
Jefferson to design the Univer-
sity of Virginia. The simplicity of
form of these buildings is re-
flected in many public buildings
throughout America today.

A typical example of Romantic-
Classicism in North Carolina is
the Wilmington Public Library
(Fig. 20), built by John Allen
Taylor in 1840 as a residence for
himself. It is a two-story build-
ing constructed of pressed brick
and covered with a veneer of
marble. The form is of a simpli-
city uncommon in the Victorian
era, having a series of horizontal
and vertical intersecting planes
completely devoid of ornament.

Plate X1/ — North Carolina State Capitol, Raleigh.

JANUARY FEBRUARY 1970
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Even the balusters of the balcony
above the main entrance are
cylindrical without the usual
series of moldings and bulbous
shapes. Another building in the
classical tradition, but with a
simplicity reminiscent of the
work of the Adam Brothers in
England, is the Masonic Temple
inNew Bern(1808).

Jefferson’s collaborator, Latrobe,
who designed part of the nation’s
capitol, built one structure in
North Carolina. Major Daniel M.
Forney, United States congress-
man representing North Carolina,
met Latrobe in Washington and
invited him to design a mansion
for him on the Forney tract in
Lincoln County, established by
his Huguenot grandfather, Jacob
Forney, in 1752. “Ingleside”
(Plate XIV), as the house was
named, dates from 1817 and is
dominated by a two-story portico
of lonic design.

William Strickland, a pupil of
Latrobe, planned several notable
buildings for the federal govern-
ment. He designed many build-
ings in Philadelphia, including
the Exchange, completed in 1834.
The following year he was given
two federal commisssions, one of
which was a Branch Mint (Fig.
21), for the city of Charlotte. It
was destroyed by fire in 1844 but
rebuilt two years later according
to the same T-shaped plan. Al-
though it has a symmetrical
facade with a large pediment
over the central bay, it is severely
Romantic-Classical. The stucco
walls on the piano nobile level
above the stone basement are
panelled with wall bands and,
despite a frieze at the eaves level,
the structure is of the utmost sim-
plicity.
columns of the portico betray a
reliance upon antiquity.

Orange County Courthouse in
Hillsborough, built by Captain
John Berry of Hillsborough in

122 JANUARY FEBRUARY 1970

Only the two Doric

1845, has a Doric columned
portico of four columns instead of
the usual six. Captain Berry
(1798-1870) was typical of the
local builder who turned to design.
His work reflected that of many of
the more famous architects—
Richard Upjohn and A. J. Davis
working in the state, who were
equally at home designing in the
style of any period. Berry was able
to design the Hillsborough Meth-
odist Church in Greek style, the
Baptist Church in early Roman-
esque, and St. John’s College, Ox-
ford, in an eclectic style, with
three Islamic domes and gothic
windows. “‘Sans Souci” and
several other houses in Hills-
borough are attributed to him
and , like the courthouse, imitate
many of the designs found in the
builders’ copybooks of the period.
These copybooks were written by
such men as Minard Lefever,
Asher Benjamin, and Alexander
Jackson Davis. Davis published
his “Rural Residences” in 1837.7

Another Jeffersonian structure
similar to the courthouse at Hills-
borough is the 1857 Rowan
County Courthouse (Fig. 22) in
Salisbury with a Doric portico
and large windows to light the
interior. Northampton County
Courthouse (Fig. 23) at Jackson,
built in 1859, has lonic columns
and a grand flight of steps to the
portico as in the Roman proto-
types.

A. J. Davis designed Smith Build-
ing, now the Playmakers Theatre
(Plate XV), on the campus
of the University of North Caro-
lina at Chapel Hill in 1849. The
form of the building is Jeffer-
sonian, and the corner capitals,
a free adaptation of the Corin-
thian order, reflect the work of
Jefferson’s collaborator Latrobe,
who designed similar capitals
for the extension to the Capitol
in Washington. John Berry of
Hillsborough was the contractor
for the building.

Fig. 20

Fig. 21

Fig. 23
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Plate XVII — Old West, U.N.C., Chapel Hill.
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Earlier buildings at the Univer-
sity of North Carolina include Old
East (Plate XVI), the first build-
ing on the campus, dating from
1793, designed by the “me-
chanic,” James Patterson. Old
West (Plate XVII) was, built by
Captain William Nichols in 1822.
Nichols was appointed state
architect that year. The firm of
Town and Davis designed the
additionto Old West in 1843.

A. J. Davis, a partner of Ithiel
Town, from the year 1829, de-
signed several buildings of dif-
fering styles in North Carolina.
He received $170.00 probably
remuneration for the general
design and layout in 1860 for
drawings of Davidson College.
C. E. Walker, who was paid
$1000.00 by the College, was
probably the architect and de-
signed the individual buildings and
supervised their construction.
The Eumenean and Philanthropic
Halls constructed in 1849 and
1850 on the Davidson campus,
have two-story porticos with stair-
cases incorporated into the
porticos similar to some of the
villas of Palladio. The brick walls
are divided into bays by simple
pilasters and reflect a careful
articulation of design elements.

Slightly earlier in his career, A.
J. Davis, of Town and Davis, was
responsible for the coordination
of the design of the state Capitol
in Union Square, Raleigh. The
original State House begun in
1793, only one year after the
establishment of the capital in
Raleigh and designed by Rhody
Atkins of Massachusetts, was
completed the following year. It
was in a dilapidated condition by
1818, and after a small fire in
1830, it was burned to the ground
in 1831. Both houses of the legis-
lature authorized the rebuilding of
the State House in the same design
as its predecessor and set up a
commission for its construction.
Captain William Nichols and his




son, of Alabama, who had sug-
gested a Georgian style re-
modelling of the original brick
structure, began the reconstruc-
tion of the new State House out
of granite from a local quarry.
After considerable expenditure
and suggestions of underhanded
dealings on the part of the Com-
missioners leading to their resig-
nation, William Nichols, Jr. was
replaced by Ithiel Town of New
York, who had studied archi-
tecture under Asher Benjamin.
Davis was in charge of the design
and David Paton, a young Scots-
man who had trained under Sir
John Soane in England, was the
supervising architect for construc-
tion on the actual site. The ser-
vices of Town and Davis were dis-
pensed with in 1834. Paton con-
tinued as supervisor and before
his dismissal in 1840, produced
229 detail design drawings for
the building. The Capitol as it
stands today, unaltered by suc-
ceeding generations, is a pleas-
ant building of cruciform plan
with a unity of design that one
would hardly expect with so many
designers engaged in its construc-
tion. The House of Representa-
tives and the Senate Chamber,
situated in the east and west
arms of the plan, lead directly
off of the cantilevered granite
balcony within the rotunda. All
detailing is classical except for
one or two small rooms with
simplified form of gothic wood-
work.

Davis designed the State Hos-
pital for the Insane in 1848, but
only the Jeffersonian courthouse-
like entrance portion remained
until recently. Davis also re-
ceived several minor commis-
sions from the state. One exam-
ple will suffice to illustrate the
eclecticism of this architect who
exemplified his age. Although a
Greek-revivalist in his public
buildings, Davis usually used
Italianate detailing in his resi-
dences. “Montrose,” the home

of William Alexander Graham
in Hillsborough, was of the New
Bern type plan with a hall the full
length of one side of the house.
Davis proposed a central hall,
an octagonal library, and bay
windows, all added on to the
front of the New Bern form, re-
ducing the rooms of the original
building to minor rooms at the rear
of his new creation. He made two
perspective sketches, one show-
ing the house with overhanging
bracketed eaves in the ltalian
mode, the other with pointed
arches and castellated battle-
ments of a mediaeval English
manor. The Davis remodelling
was never carried out.?

The primary roots of the Modern
Movement are the introduction of
new materials and the effects of
mass production of the Industrial
Revolution, Romantic-Classicism,
and the Gothic Revival.

The mass produced cast iron struc-
tures built as a result of the In-
dustrial Revolution are almost
nonexistent in the state. The
large warehouses built along the
waterfronts of Baltimore, Phila-
delphia, New York, and St. Louis
were not needed in the ports of a
state whose economy was based
upon agriculture.

The Gothic-Revival was another
matter. This style, which had its
roots in the poetry, painting, and
landscape of England was in-
troduced into North Carolina.
Horace Wapole, the sophisticated
dilettante of Twickenham, Eng-
land, built a playhouse (“Straw-
berry Hill”") in which he reflected
the playful use of Gothic forms
prior to the purification evolving
with the Gothic Revival of the
1840's. There also existed a con-
tinuing Gothic tradition of the
mastermason, especially in the
country districts of England, which
had never outgrown the needs of
the Mediaeval period. It is, there-
fore, the playful-Gothic and the
tradition of the Middle Ages which

appear in the early Gothic-Revival
buildings in North Carolina prior
to the period of Richard Upjohn.
Upjohn was the American coun-
terpart of the English purifier Au-
gustus Welby Northmore Pugin.

St. John’s Episcopal Church in
Fayetteville (Fig. 24) was “built
something in the Gothic’” in 1817.
It burned in 1831, but was rebuilt
with its original walls in the Gothic
Revival style. The multiple spires
on the twin towers of its facade
give the structure a theatrical
appearance like the engravings of
Henry VIlI's Field of the Cloth of
Gold. St. Matthews Church in
Hillsborough, built in 1824 by
the local builder Captain John
Berry, is picturesque and related
to the playfulness of the early
Gothic-Revival.

Thomas U. Walter, famous for his
designs of the facade and the
dome of the nation’s Capitol, was
typical of the architects of his day
and age. He used classical forms
for governmental, banking, and
public buildings and Gothic forms
for religious architecture. He de-
signed two churches in North
Carolina: St. James in Wilming-
ton (Plate XVIII) constructed in
1839 and the Chapel of the Cross
in Chapel Hill built in 1842
Both have an array of Mediaeval
motifs; both have tall pointed
windows of the Decorated Period
and tower buttresses. There are
square-headed windows on
the chapel in Chapel Hill and
castellations that are rather Tudor
in feeling. Both have decorative
arches above their entrances
which gives the facades a rather

‘flamboyant appearance.

An English immigrant named
Richard Upjohn carried the ban-
ner of a purer Gothic Revival
from the writings of A. W. N. Pug-
in to the United States. Before
discussing his contribution to
nineteenth century design, it is
well to examine the religious
movements of the period to which

JANUARY FEBRUARY 1970 15



the Gothic forms of architecture
were adapted.

The Church of England, an estab-
lished church with Tory clergy,
did not fit into the free democratic
society of North Carolina in the
late eighteenth century. Quakers
and Moravians were pacifists
who did not contribute to the
fight for freedom, but their service
to the wounded was commended
by the leaders of both sides.
Methodists remained loyal to the
mother country during the cause
for freedom. The Presbyterian
Church was split between the
loyalist Highlanders and hostile
Scots-Irish.

In 1700 the population of the
state was an estimated 5000 per-
sons. By 1800 it had grown to a
hundred times that number, and
throughout each successive dec-
ade of the nineteenth century an
average of more than 100,000
persons were added. Poverty,
transportation difficulties, and
the small number of ministers pro-
hibited the gathering together of
people of a similar faith.

The Protestant-Episcopal Church
founded in Philadelphia in 1789
was not established in North Car-
olina until 1817 when the Rev-
erend John Stark Ravenscroft be-
came first Bishop of the Diocese
of North Carolina. In 1830 there
were thirty-one Episcopalian con-
gregations, mostly in large towns,
served by eleven ministers.

Richard Upjohn, architect of Trin-
ity Church, Broadway, New York,
was invited to design Christ
Church (Plate XIX) on Union
Square in Raleigh in 1848. It is
of the Early English Gothic period
in style and typical of churches
built in the areas of mediaeval
England where stone was plenti-
ful. The leaders of the mediae-
val-Gothic Revival believed in this
traditional approach. Windows
are tall and narrow “lancets,” a
type common before the develop-
ment of tracery in the Decorated

16 JANUARY FEBRUARY 1970

and Perpendicular periods of me-
diaeval Gothic. The broach spire
reflects this tradition in its stone
construction. Upjohn also de-
signed Grace Church (Fig. 25) in
Plymouth, Washington County
(1859-60).

Although Upjohn was a profes-
sional architect, founding mem-
ber, and first president of the
American Institute of Architects,
he also catered to the small rural
congregation, which could not af-
ford either professional services
or sophisticated design, by pub-
lishing and writing “Upjohn's
Rural Architecture” in 1852. It
was intended for small, poor
country parishes which were usu-
ally compelled to build in wood
using local craftsmen and labor
as a “‘free will offering.”” If the
congregation could raise about
$3,000 for materials and $5.00
for the copybook, they could have
a pleasant building with a capaci-
ty of 1560 people. As an alter-
native, they could build a church
of a simple box design for as little
as $900.

A frame chapel, which fol-
lowed one of the copybook de-
signs, can be found on the cam-
pus of the Episcopal School for
Young Ladies established in Ra-
leigh in 1842 and acquired by the
Episcopal Church in 1897. St.
Mary’s Junior College, as it is
known today, has a chapel con-
structed in 1854 by Mr. Cameron
from designs by Richard Upjohn.
The chapel measures 24 feet by
53 feet. A certain amount of re-
modelling, including the addition
of two transepts, was done in
1905. The strips of vertical board-
ing bands look well with the nar-
row lancet windows. A hooded
canopy is over the entrance, and
the cartwheel “rose” hexagonal
window dominates the south fa-
cade. Several other examples of
small wooden chapels existed,
but they are not necessarily based
upon Upjohn’s designs. St. Am-

Fig. 24
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brose Episcopal Church (Plate
XX) on South Wilmington Street
in Raleigh was set up by church-
men connected with St. Augus-
tine’s School and ten men from
Christ Church in 1868. Many
other towns have these carpen-
ter’'s Gothic chapels; at Burling-
ton in Alamance County is St.
Athanasius Episcopal Church
built in 1879; Beaufort, Carteret
County, St. Pauls Episcopal
Church in 1857; Trenton, Jones
County, Grace Episcopal Church
(Plate XXI) in 1885, a decorative
little church with tower and spire
over the end gable, and St. Marks
Episcopal Church (Plate XXIl) in
1854, Halifax, an early simpler
version with tower.?

The window heads of the Trenton
Church are triangular, and the
decoration is quite playful, espe-
cially the corbel table of small
arches which terminate the pat-
tern of the vertical boarding.
Weeksville in Pasquotank County
has a chapel with an octagonal
side tower, but the most ornate
of these essentially simple build-
ings is St. John’s (Fig. 26) in
Marion, in McDowell County,
with a shingle roof and a tower
which splays out at the eaves’
level above a panelled base.

In the sphere of religious activity
the period from 1800 to 1860 is
usually termed the Great Revival.
During this period the Method-
ists, who had made a bad start
by criticising slavery, soon
changed sides and by 1860 had
61,000 members in some 966
essentially rural congregations.
They emphasized religious reform,
prayer, humanitarianism, educa-
tion, and camp meetings. Rural
Methodists gathered together atan
encampment of “wooden tents”
and listened to inspired orators
preach the word. Pleasant Grove
Methodist Camp Ground (Plate
XXII1), in Union County, is typical
of many of these camp grounds.
It has a large square of huts or
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“wooden tents’’ surrounding an
arbor under which the meetings
were held. The arbor usually con-
sisted of a large pitched roof,
similar to a tent with open sides
except for wooden supports for
the roof structure. Surrounding
the square would be a spring for
water, horse and cow pens, and
various outhouses. The Rock
Springs campground (Plate XX-
IV) exists near Denver in the
northeastern corner of Lincoln
County. North of Lincolnton to-
wards Maiden is St. Matthew's
Church Arbor built for the Re-
formed Church whose members
were generally opposed to camp
meetings, especially of the re-
vival type promoted by the Bap-
tists and Methodists.

Upjohn’s  ““Rural Architecture”
provided the basis of design for
local carpenters. Similar copy-
books, concerned with the design
of residences, were written by
A. J. Davis and one of his close
associates, Andrew Jackson
Downing. lllustrations from these
books reflect styles of building
from a number of countries
throughout the world. The various
styles of the English mediaeval
period produced quite a wide
choice of fashionable forms; there
were styles from almost any Medi-
terranean  country, Suburban
Greek, Spanish, Moorish, Etrus-
can, and Palmyran suitably
adapted to local use. However,
it was ltalian Renaissance forms,
especially of Tuscany or Lom-
bardy, which appealed to the taste
of most Americans, usually a
wooden version of the Italian villas
constructed originally of stone,
marble, and stucco.

Wilmington, the largest city in
the state until 1910, perhaps has
the most varied collection of such
villas. These appear along aven-
ues lined with oaks, maples, and
magnolias, situated between Sec-
ond and Fifth Streets. Detailing
varies from house to house, but
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generally they have wide over-
hanging eaves supported with
large ornate brackets. The win-
dows, either square-headed or
round-headed, like those of the
early Italian Renaissance, have
frames, pediments, or overdec-
orative Mannerist moldings usu-
ally made of painted cast iron.
Sometimes these window mould-
ings and eaves brackets are
painted in contrasting colors to
offset the somber and serene flat
colors of the walls which act as
a backdrop. A deep frieze is usu-
ally situated below the eaves or
integrated with the brackets; this
sometimes includes attic win-
dows, surrounded by wreath-like
decoration, used for ventilating
the roof space of the building.
Porticos with columns in the
form of free adaptations of the
classic orders usually run along
at least the front of the house.
Balustrades and wrought iron
railings span the spaces between
the columns around the porches.

Many examples can also be found
in New Bern, Raleigh, or Salis-
bury, towns which expanded ap-
preciably during the latter half of
the nineteenth century. The Tuck-
er Residence (Plate XXV) form-
erly on St. Mary’s Street in Ra-
leigh, designed by William Perci-
val, had many additions, but the
early bulky form of the Italianate
structure with its wide tower furn-
ished acool retreat with a view.1°

Less Italianate and more Grecian
are the more symmetrical country
villas such as “Cherry Hill"” (Fig.
27) in Warren County or a later
house called “Casine” in Frank-
lin County.

In the western part of the state
at Flat Rock in Henderson County
there is an ltalianate church by
Charles Baring called St. John in
the Wilderness (Fig. 28). It con-
sists of a simple gable-ended
chancel, a stubby tower, a pyra-
midal roof, and a large overhang.
It was started as early as 1834 by




summer residents from Charles-
ton and Savannah, and the ltalia-
nate details date from 1854.

Prior to the Civil War another plan
form became popular, especially
in New York State. This plan
came from a book published by
0. S. Fowler in 1854 entitled A
Home For All, or the Gravel Wall
and Octagon Mode of Building,
New, Cheap, Convenient, Superior
and Adapted to Rich and Poor."
Fowler suggested the octagonal
house because, with the same
perimeter wall area as a square
house, the owner gained twenty
percent more area internally.
However, most of the rooms have
triangular plans and are difficult
spaces in which to arrange furni-
ture. New York still has well over
a hundred such buildings, some
with surrounding porches and
others in the cobblestone style of
the Finger Lakes Region. The plans
for these octagonal houses are
sometimes ingenious. It is usual,
however, to have a hall from
front to rear incorporating a stair-
case with a square room on
either side and four triangular
rooms in the corners with access
either directly from the hall or in-
directly from the hall or indirectly
from the square rooms. Such
structures were not constructed
in any large number in North
Carolina. One exists in the region
of Lake Mattamuskeet in Hyde
County and another, the ““Jones
Place” (Fig. 29), just east of
Swansboro in Carteret County,
dating from 1856.

After the Civil War, Italianate
houses took on a different ap-
pearance with the admixture of
the French Beaux Arts Second
Empire style. Such houses had
steep mansard roofs pierced with
dormer windows and bulbous,
concave, or convex towers in-
stead of the earlier low pitched
roofs rising from the bracketted
eaves. Those built immediately
after the war were usually termed
General Grant Style.

Two Raleigh contractors, Thomas
H. Briggs and James Dodd, in-
corporated Briggs and Dodd Hard-
ware Company, and in 1874
designed the Briggs Building
(Plate XXVI) located on Fayette-
ville Street. Still used as a hard-
ware store, it is the only store-
front of this period remaining un-
touched by later generations.
Briggs also designed the A. B.
Andrews House (Fig. 30) on the
southwest corner of the inter-
section of North Blount and
East North streets. This house
illustrates the addition of French
design, especially in the convex
and concave bulbous roofs, to
the Italianate forms of the lower
storys. In 1875 Dodd designed
and built a house (Plate XXVII)
for himself on the northwest cor-
ner of Hillsborough and Harring-
ton streets. Shortly after it was
completed he was forced to sell
it; and in 1889 it came into the
possession of the Hinsdale family,
the present owners, who still own
it. It is not as ornate as the An-
drews House, but has all the
characteristics of the period, in-
cluding rather Mannerist columns
and brackets on the front porch.
Similar to this house are three
smaller but equally pretentious
wooden structures built by three
brothers, one of the houses is
named the Captain Lee House
on the northeast corner of North
Jones Street and East North
Street in Raleigh.

If Wilmington is considered the
home of the early Italianate Villa-
house and Raleigh the home of
the later forms, Warrenton is the
home of the so-called Greek-
Revival residence. This type of
residence is essentially an axially
planned house with a symmetrical
Georgian facade incorporating,
however, both a Greek.portico
and general detailing. The in-
fluence ultimately came from
Romantic Classicism and books
such as Stewart and Revett's

Fig. 28

[

Fig. 29
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Fig. 30
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Plate XXVI

Plate XXVII —Hinsdale House, Raleigh.
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Plate XXVIII—Old Collin’s Place, Franklin County.
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Plate XX1X — Mordecai House, Raleigh.

Antiquities of Athens (1762)
and various other copybooks
which included advertisements
such as Works in Architecture of
Robert and James Adam (1773).
The dozen or so dwellings of this
type in Warrenton reflect the in-
fluence of the Coleman-White-
Jones House remodelled in 1840
by Captain W. J. White. It is of
wood construction with pairs of
large external brick chimneys at
either end. The house has a re-
fined detailing based upon the
free adaptation of the so-called
“Palladian motif.” The Mary Bur-
well Parsonage of 1843 on Main
Street in Warrenton has a similar
character, especially in the Doric
frieze at eaves’ level. However,
the single-story portico has
brackets of a more Italianate
character.

Greek Revival residences of this
type can be found in the vicinity
of Warrenton, especially to the
southwest towards Louisburg and
south from there towards Raleigh.
Many of the structures are in a
poor state of repair today. Be-
tween Centerville and Louisburg
is the Old Collins Place (Plate
XXVIII) which also has the “Palla-
dian motif’’ repeated on all five
windows and the central entrance
of the main facade. The design
has been well handled, although
the Palladian motif has been used
as an overall decorative form in-
stead of as a note of emphasis
in the centre of a symmetrical
facade as is usually the case.

“Midway Plantation” near Ra-
leigh is constructed in a style
similar to the Warrenton Greek-
Revival style. In Raleigh how-
ever the two-story portico pre-
dominates and reflects the influ-
ence of the brick State Bank (later
Christ Church Parsonage) builton
New Bern Avenue in 1818. The
Mordecai House (Plate XXIX),
most of which dates from 1824,
is similar to the bank although of
wood frame construction. The
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ground level columns are Doric
and the second story are lonic.
The Lewis House at 515 North
Wilmington Street is also similar,
but with the added incongruity of
an ltalianate bracketted as well
as a modillioned cornice and
pediment.

Godey’'s Lady’s Book for January,
1850, illustrated an Anglo-Gre-
cian Villa, adapted by Major Peter
W. Hairston, in 1856, in the house
on his 12,000-acre plantation
near Mocksville in Davie County.
Hairston named his conglomerate
pile of Romantic and Classic fea-
tures “Cooleemee” (Plate XXX).
It has bay windows extending the
interior out into nature, an ltalian-
ate cupola, a classical frieze,
cornice, pediments, lonic porti-
cos, and pairs of round-headed
Romanesque windows.

Had North Carolina not been “dis-
loyal” in 1861, it would have
prized several buildings in the
Greek tradition by Ammi Burn-
ham Young, who held a post
equivalent to that of federal archi-
tect from 1852 to 1862. He de-
signed the Naval Hospital at Wil-
mington, which, after a variety
of uses, was torn down following
the Second World War. In its
place, a more Italianate design by
federal architect A. B. Mullett
was builtinthe 1870’s.12

So far, the main movements of
the nineteenth century resulting
from the Romantic Movement
have been analyzed. The Gothic
Revival, found chiefly in religious
buildings and a few residences,
and the Classic and Greek Revi-
val, with ltalianate detailing in
the design of villas, have also
been discussed. There are, how-
ever, many examples of the eclec-
tic forms of the Victorian period, a
period of the "'battle of the styles,”
throughout the state which reflect
a number of other historic periods
and styles as well as regional
forms.




The Louisiana style house sur-
rounded on all four sides by a
colonnade and crowned with a
single roof instead of the usual
Beaufort shed roofis nottoo com-
mon inNorth Carolina. One dilap-
idated house of this type exists
in Pender County about eighteen
miles north of Wilmington on US
117. Also, the Bellamy Mansion
(Plate XXXI) in Wilmington, al-
though over decorated with Vic-
torian details, has the character
of a Louisiana plantation. In
Northampton County about six
miles east of Garysburg on US
158 stands Mowfield with its
slender columns, stepped out
frieze, and modillioned cornice.
It has a colonnade covered by the
main roof along only one side.
Across the road stands Verona
(Plate XXXII) (1857), a low lying
Gulf Coast villa with geometric
gingerbread decoration on the
porches.

Flemish Renaissance forms were
introduced in two almost identi-
cal county buildings, the Sheriffs
Office (1831) in  Jackson,
Northampton County and the
Clerk of Courts Office (Plate
XXXII1) (1832) in Halifax, Halifax
County. Both have stepped gables
and the Halifax office has tall
spiky pyramidal forms on each
step of the gables. They both have
a plaster cove moulding at the
eaves and identical stone lintels
above the doorsand windows.

Dutch Renaissance form is repre-
sented by the Gaston County
Courthouse (1848) at Dallas,
Gaston County with stairs leading
up to a central entrance on the
main upper level. More Dutch in
feeling is the Fayetteville Market
House, (Plate XXXIV) which is
typical of the butter-houses and
custom-houses which dominate
many of the towns in Holland.
Designed in 1838 as a market
house for the sale of meat and
produce, the Fayetteville Market
has an arcaded selling area at

ASPHALT  SUmMGLES

F" > . T-ve . ) f
. e e e =t
T T e Tlow T T e Tow T e [T e T .z:v"ﬁiﬁ'{}’

REGISTRAR'S OFFICE <

BRICK.  FLooRNG

N

T

COUNTY COURT CLERK'S OFFICE

r SUPERIOR COURT
CLERK'S OFFICE

.
N\

©

s

Plate XXXI1l — County Clerk’s Office, Halifax.

JANUARY FEBRUARY 1970 25



woop shrs

R Room

wooo FeiEzE - -

P —

WO coLumn

METAL CLocK FACE

woon oG ——

GaL. TN RooF

2o~ 7"

~
SOBLLIWY

Fig. 32

S i

SECOND_ TICOR TLAN

N

Plate XXXIV — Old Market House, Fayetteville.

26 JANUARY FEBRUARY 1970




Fig. 34

Fig. 35

Fig. 36

ground level with offices above
the roof which is surmounted by
a clock tower, as are many of the
European predecessors of this
American design.

Wilmington is the only town
boasting a synagogue with onion
domes and horseshoe arches
reminiscent of Islamic archi-
tecture.

The British Government offices
at the Centennial Exhibition in
Philadelphia (1876) introduced
to the American scene the half-
timbered old English cottage in
Queen Anne style with a flavor
of Gothic. Adopted to the Ameri-
can form of construction, it be-
came the “'stick style.” It even en-
couraged America to look back
to her own tradition of the colo-
nial period and incorporate
simple rustic motifs into the de-
sign of the 1880’s. Character-
istics of this style varied from
state to state, but generally the
verandahs were of wood whether
the walls behind them were of
brownstone or of polychromed
brick; the roofs were slated or
shingled. Such houses tend to be
large and rambling with huge cen-
tral halls, ingle nooks, bay win-
dows, and imaginative hips, gables
and turrets in the roof design.
New Bern and Washington (Beau-
fort County) have one or two
examples of this style (Figs. 31
and 32), but they are in poor
condition. In order to find a well-
preserved example it is usually
necessary to look to the great
institutions which have main-
tained the structures in a con-
tinuous state of repair. The Gov-
ernor’s Mansion (Fig. 33) in Ra-
leigh is a case in point. Here, the
State commissioned  Samuel
Sloan, an architect from Phila-
delphia, the fountain—head city
of the Queen Anne style in
America. Sloan brought his young
assistant, Adolphus Gustavus
Bauer, to Raleigh, and together
they designed this noble Gover-

nor’'s Mansion. It is not as ornate
as other “'stick style’" structures
having a reasonably plain fretwork
onthe porches. The mostdecorative
elements are the turned support
columns on the porches. In New
Bern and Washington, the better
examples of this style have half-
timbering on the gables, cart-
wheel-like motifs in the corners
of the porches, and doily-like
edging. One cottage in Murfrees-
boro has silhouette cut-outs of
men in the porch supports (the
reverse of pastry gingerbread
men).

Much of the work of Frank Lloyd
Wright developed from the late
nineteenth century. One small
house (Fig. 34) in Rockingham
has the Wright characteristic of
the low lying form with a shallow-
hipped roof extending out into the
landscape.

Paralleling the “'stick-style” is the
Romanesque Revival Movement,
a logical continuation of the
Gothic tradition. Its great protago-
nist was Henry Hobson Richardson,
whose influence extended to the
smallest brownstone structures in
the smallest town. Salisbury’s
First Presbyterian Church (Plate
XXXV) is slightly more eclectic
than is normally expected in the
Romanesque vogue. It was con-
structed predominantly of brick
with brownstone detailing around
the doors and windows. Much of
the craftsman tradition of care-
fully executed handwashed wood
and stone forms can be seen in
this church. Biltmore Village in
Asheville, subsidiary buildings
(Fig. 35) on the Biltmore Estate,
and All Souls’ Episcopal Church
(Fig. 36) in the village all have
similar Richardsonian character-
istics but with a far more English
flavor paralleling the early work
of Sir Edwin Lutyens in England.
All Souls’ is very similar in massing
to Richardson’s Trinity Church in
Boston.

Richard Morris Hunt was the

JANUARY FEBRUARY 1970 27



il

T e e
.

ghn

== nemenis:

x : EiEae
VRN = i
- = !
o Iy
‘7., T, = LI
p7e ==
J 1
= g
i
e = = =
| i =1
B pa s[GBS . i [Ereprer
- - - - 1 e oo|oof
- Al L 11 :
= il " R It .
o | | :
“Z
<,
e,
.
48- 10" 48-3"
;'-a}e‘-du%"@'ﬁ} 22-2" Glo"  Banioiign
1ofl
e E—3 ot
\ IIII‘—-’IIIIII?/IIIA L
s / ZIK]
~ QU -
iy <5Ar==;r5ub;rm¢l) Vi
Jotsr pegel  alet pSnnidfesizer 1atan ¥
(b .\;L -
IR
<1 =0 8847
R | =)
R
-

JANUARY FEBRUARY 1970




Fig. 37

Fig. 39

architect of George Vanderbilt's
Biltmore structures; Frederick Law
Olmstead was the landscape arch-
itect and Chauncey D. Geadle the
landscape engineer. Hunt was the
first American to attend the Ecole
des Beaux Arts in Paris, where
after graduation he worked for
Lefuel on the Bibliotheque du
Louvre.

Therefore it is not surprising that
when Hunt returned to America,
in the late 1850’s, his work was
influenced by his knowledge of
French architecture. At Biltmore
he erected a huge pile reminiscent
of the early French Renaissance
style of the Loire Valley chateaux
built by Francis I. The dominant
feature of the main facade is the
staircase taken from the chateau
at Blois. Many interior spaces and
supports are reminiscent of the
schemes of Viollet-le-Duc who
attempted to translate the struc-
tural principles of the Gothic
period into cast iron, as illus-
trated in his Discourses on Archi-
tecture. Rafael Guastovino lo-
cated in nearby Black Mountain,
constructed and patented a
special assembly line kiln for
brick tile construction for the
floor structures at Biltmore.
Guastovino used very shallow
“Catalan” vaults of brick tiles,
about two and a half inches in
thickness. This form of construc-
tion was widely used at the end
of the last century but soon died
out. The system was also used by
Guastovino in at least two Roman-
Catholic churches which he de-
signed: St. Mary’s Cathedral in
Wilmington constructed in 1906
in the Spanish Renaissance style,
and St. Lawrence Church in
Asheville (1909) which was in
modified early Renaissance in
style. In the latter church, the
eliptical dome 82 x 58 feet in size,
is constructed of three layers of
woven brick tiles. Guastovino
also contributed to the tile work
in the Duke University Chapel in
Durham.

One of Hunt's early apprentices
was Frank Furness, who in turn
became the master of Louis Sulli-
van. Furness’ buildings in Phila-
delphia have a boldness which
links the eclecticism of his pred-
ecessors with the originality of a
body of architects, including
Sullivan, called the “Chicago
School.” Furness did not build
anything in North Carolina but,
like Richardson, he had a certain
amount of influence in the state.
The Cooper Building (Fig. 37)
of 1890 on Hillsboro Street in Ox-
ford, Granville County, has some
of the bold High-Victorian char-
acteristics of Furness, as does
the firehouse in Washington,
Beaufort County.

Toward the end of the century
several buildings in the modern
idiom were being erected with the
simple character of the Scandi-
navian style of the 1920’s but pre-
dating that style by about twenty
years. The railroad station at
Salisbury (Fig. 38) is one such
building. One or two eclectic
motifs are still evident in this
building but, generally speaking,
the station is composed of simple
geometric forms providing a total
unity of design.

No discussion of North Carolina
architecture would be complete
without mentioning the utilitarian
structures within the state which
strongly reflect their function. The
educational establishments hous-
ing agricultural laboratories and
the technological machinery of
the mechanical arts reflect this
approach to simple and functional
design. Industrial and military
architecture has also reflected
this simplicity in a functional ap-
proach.

The North Carolina State College
of Agriculture and Mechanical
Arts, now North Carolina State
University, was established in
1889, Holladay Hall (Fig. 39) was
the first structure and housed
every function of the college. It
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contained lecture rooms, offices,
and temporary dormitories and had
a chapel, a dining room, a kitchen,
and a laundry in the basement.
The architect was Charles L. Car-
son of Baltimore, who possibly
had the same utilitarian attitude
as Daniel Coit Gilman, first presi-
dent of Johns Hopkins University
in Baltimore. Gilman favoring
utilitarian design stated; “when
you do build, get an honest brick-
layer, and make him build . . . first
such rooms as you really want,
leaving ample space for expan-
sion.”’

This utilitarian approach was com-
mon to many industrial buildings
springing up throughout the state
at the end of the nineteenth cen-
tury. Cotton mills and tobacco
factories were simple, large brick
structures devoid of decoration
except for wall buttresses, cor-
nice tables, and sometimes a cas-
tellated parapet. These buildings
were the result of expanding in-
dustrial concerns and reflected
their financial growth.

The small farmer who cultivated
a crop of tobacco and built one or
two tobacco barns of simple, tra-
ditional log construction was not
a part of this expanding economy.
Agriculture did not regain its
dominant role in the economy
until well into the twentieth cen-
tury. Thus the factory, with its
technology and industrial pro-
cesses, can be found cheek-by-
jowl with the log cabin of an
earlier tradition, but both were
constructed for a similar utilitar-
ian purpose.

All such buildings date from
about the 1870’s, but several
industrial structures date back to
the eighteenth century. They were
primarily those structures depend-
ent upon water power, the only
source of power within North Car-
olina until the age of industriali-
zation.

Samuel Pearson of New Bern
built Yates Mill (Plate XXXVI) on
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Lake Wheeler Road in Raleigh be-
tween 1748 and 1750. The pres-
ent mill dates from the 1840’s and
has a wheel, twelve feet in di-
ameter, for grinding corn, cutting
lumber, and carding wool.

Wake County did not exist in the
earlier period, and there were few
houses and roads in the vicinity.
Accordingly, raw materials were
transported to the mill, and col-
lected after processing, by boats
orbarges.

In Union County the Drury Morgan
Grist Mill (Plate XXXVII) was the
nucleus of all trading in the area
and grew to a local trading center.

After the war in the 1860's wheat
production never reached prewar
levels because of the radically
depressed agricultural system.
Cotton, textiles, and furniture then
became the primary industries
and, in the 1870’s, the production
of chewing and smoking tobacco
came into its own and established
many fortunes.

Flu curing (as opposed to the
slow natural drying process
requiring more time and careful
supervision) began about 1830 in
North Carolina. It became ex-
tremely popular by 1880’'s be-
cause the small log barns em-
ployed in this process could be
used twice during one curing
season.

The tobacco barn is usually quite
small as the time required to
fill a larger barn could hazard the
whole crop, especially if the
leaves begin to wilt before the
curing process takes place. After
this heating or curing process the
crop is placed in an ordering
house for about six hours to re-
place the moisture in the dry
leaves. The final processing takes
place in the packhouse.

All these structures were orig-
inally of log construction but later
developed into clapboard when
the horizontal boarding could be
satisfactorily sealed with bitu-

minous roofing felt. The “Old
Young Place” in Franklin County
has a good example of such a
tobacco barn which dates from
1898.

The area north of Durham in Cas-
well, Person, Orange, and Dur-
ham counties still has many to-
bacco structures in reasonably
good condition. About three miles
out of Durham on the Roxboro
Road stands a small log barn
built in 1851, at the home place
of Washington Duke. Returning
from a northern prison after the
Civil War, Duke began to use the
log barn as a factory where he
packaged his tobacco and printed
the words, “PRO BONO PUBLI-
CQ” (for the public good) on the
package.

Cotton presses were constructed
throughout the state. Mules were
hitched to the projecting arms
of the presses which turned the
screw to press and pack the cot-
ton. Anold press (Plate XXXVIII),
built prior to 1850, existed on the
Northfleet Plantation in Edge-
combe County until it was moved
to the Town Common in Tarboro.

Prior to the Civil War there were
about thirty-nine cotton mills in
the state; but despite an increase
in cotton production after this
time, there were fewer mills by
1870. Large masonry cotton fac-
tories, such as the Great Falls
Mill (1876) in Rockingham, Rich-
mond County, were constructed
toward the end of the nineteenth
century.

State railroads date from the
early 1830's when a short line
was constructed from the capitol
in Raleigh to a nearby granite
quarry where stone was quarried
for the erection of that building.
General construction of railroads
was slow and neither they nor
the early log roads, ever seem
to have achieved the importance
of water transportation until the
closing years of the nineteenth
century. Most towns of any size
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Plate XXXVII — Drury Morgan Mill, Monroe.
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have small railroad depots with
wide overhanging eaves sup-
ported by wooden or cast iron
brackets. Washington and Ken-
ansville have large basilica
church-like barns, but the large
station is usually twentieth cen-
tury building type.

Skillful military engineering en-
dowed North Carolina with the
large pentagonal brick structure
known as Fort Macon (Plate XXX-
IX). Built originally in the 1740’s
to protect Beaufort from Spanish
invasion, it was rebuilt in 1828
and completed in 1835. It has
barrel vaulted sleeping quarters,
storage rooms, and dungeons.
Theentire structure is surrounded
by awide and deep moat.

The simplicity of form seen in in-
dustrial and military architecture
returns to the functional needs of
the early settlers of North Caro-
lina. The log cabin is one of the
early forms of domestic construc-
tion and also the prototype for
the small tobacco barn. It reflects
the indigenous character of an
area where resourcefulness of
a rural economy combined with
available local materials in a sub-
tropical climate to produce a
logical vernacular of construction.
Many of the houses described in
this article were built and re-
modeled over several generations.
Thus they have local character
and are important to an under-
standing of the traditions and
heritage of North Carolina. Few
houses in this state can be com-
pared to the wealthy plantation
houses along the James River in
Virginia or along the Ashley and
Cooper Rivers near Charleston

in South Carolina. Nevertheless,
North Carolina has a distinct tra-

dition which can be traced back to
many sources. The influence of
English architecture is exempli-
fied by St. Paul’'s Church and the
Chowan County Courthouse at
Edenton and the Governor Tryon
Palace at New Bern. Bermuda

and the Atlantic Seaboard states
influenced the North Carolina
coastal style, and Scots-Irish,
German Lutherans, and Mora-
vians introduced their own
methods of construction, and
integrated them with those al-
ready in existence in the areas in
which they settled. An assort-
ment of structures from various
origins fused into a logical
architecture, based upon local
climatic, geographical, religious,
and economic circumstances. The
final product is a vernacular pe-
culiar to North Carolina with an
overlay of stylistic influences be-
coming most obvious with the
battle of the styles in the Vic-
torianera.

FOOTNOTES

8Cecil D. Elliott, “The North Carolina State
Capitol,” Southern Architect, V. No. 5,
1951, pp. 19-22, No. 6, pp. 23-26, and No.
7,pp. 24-27.

’Eva Ingersoll Gatling, “John Berry of
Hillsboro, North Carolina,”” Journal of the
Society of Architectural Historians, X, No.
1,(March 1951), pp. 18-22.

sJohn V. Allcott, “Architectural Develop-
ment at ‘Montrose’ in the 1950’s”” North
Carolina Historical Review, XLII, No. 1,
1965, pp. 85-95.

°Lawrence Wodehouse, “Upjohn’s Rural-
Architecture in North Carolina,” North
Carolina Architect, XV, No. 11, 1968,
pp. 13-22.

°Lawrence Wodehouse, “William Percival,
Architect, Raleigh, North Carolina,” North
Carolina Architect, X1V, No. 11, 1967,
pp.11-18.

"John Maass, The Gingerbread Age, New
York, 1957, p. 55.

2Lawrence Wodehouse, “Alfred B.
Mullett’s Court Room and Post Office at
Raleigh, North Carolina,” Journal of the
Society of Architectural Historians, XXVI,
No. 4, (December 1967), pp. 301-305.
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CONTRIBUTORS TO N. C. DESIGN FOUNDATION, INC.

In addition to a substantial contri-
bution from the architectural
profession via the N. C. Archi-
tectural Foundation, the following
firms and/or individuals made
contributions to the Design Foun-
dation during the period Septem-
ber 1, 1968 — August 31, 1969.
The funds are used in support of
the University’s School of Design
in three key areas — Department
of Architecture, Department of
Product Design, and the Depart-
ment of Landscape Architecture.

Adams Concrete Products Co.
Durham

Andco Industries Corp.
Greensboro

Asheboro Concrete Products Co.

Asheboro

Atlantic Glass Co.

Wilmington

Barger Construction Co.

Mooresville

Blanton Moore, Inc.

Barium Springs

The Bonitz Insulation Co.

Greensboro

Borden Brick and Tile Co.

Goldsboro

Boyette-Trotter Floor
Covering, Inc.

Charlotte

Brenner Iron & Metal Co.

Winston-Salem

Budd-Piper Roofing Co.

Durham

Builders Supplies Co.

Goldsboro

Boren Clay Products Co.

Pleasant Garden

Edwin C. Boyette & Son, Inc.

Charlotte

The Burlington
Industries Foundation

Greensboro

Carolina Builders Corporation

Raleigh

Carolina Chalkboard Co.

Charlotte
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Carolina Quality Block Co.

Greensboro

Carolina Ready Mixed
Concrete Co.

Raleigh

*Carolinas Roofing & Sheet
Metal Contractors Assoc.

Raleigh

*Carolina Solite Corporation
Charlotte

Carolina Steel Corporation
Greensboro

Clancey & Theys Construction Co.

Raleigh

John S. Clark Company, Inc.
Statesville

Collier Cobb & Associates
Chapel Hill

Concrete Supply Co.

Charlotte

James E. Cox Construction, Inc.
Charlotte

Cunningham Brick Co.
Thomasville

Joseph Dave Foundation

Dave Steel Company

Asheville

Delph Hardware & Specialty Co.
Charlotte

Exposaic Industries, Inc.
Greensboro

Fogle Brothers Co.
Winston-Salem

Fowler-Jones Construction Co.
Winston-Salem

Furniture Foundation, Inc.
High Point

General Specialties Co., Inc.
Charlotte

Giant Portland Cement Co.
Raleigh

Globe Furniture Foundation
High Point

Hall’s Inc.
Charlotte

Hanford Brick Co., Inc.
Burlington

Holbrook Waterproofing Co.
Charlotte

Howard Construction Co., Inc.
Lincolnton

Howell Steel Service, Inc.

Weldon

Isenhour Brick & Tile Co., Inc.
Salisbury

Erwin Jones & Co., Inc.
Charlotte

Kendrick Brick & Tile Co., Inc.
Charlotte

Kings Mountain Brick, Inc.
Kings Mountain

Lee Brick & Tile Co., Inc.
Sanford

D. C. May Co.

Durham

McDevitt & Street Co.
Charlotte

*Mid-State Tile Co.
Lexington

Mitchell & Becker Co.
Charlotte

Montague & Co.
Winston-Salem

Nash Brick Co.

Rocky Mount

N. C. Concrete Masonry Assoc.
Raleigh

North State Pyrophyllite, Inc.
Greensboro

Peden Steel Co.

Raleigh

Piedmont Construction Co.
Winston-Salem

Pine Hall Brick & Pipe Co.
Winston-Salem

Piedmont Minerals Co., Inc.
Greensboro

Pritchard Paint & Glass Co.
Charlotte

*The Producers’ Council, Inc.
Charlotte

*Ready Mixed Concrete Co.
Raleigh

Salisbury Lumber & Supply Co.
Salisbury

Sanford Brick Corp.

Sanford

Scarborough Builders Supply Co.
Lumberton




CONTRIBUTORS Continued

Snow Lumber Co.
High Point
Southern Photo Print
& Supply Co.
Greensboro
Standard Mineral Co., Inc.
Robbins
Statesville Brick Co.
Statesville
Taylor Clay Products, Inc.
Salisbury
Nello L. Teer Co.
Durham
Triangle Brick Co.
Durham
Trout and Riggs
Construction Co.
Durham
A. B. Whitley, Inc.
Greenville
F. Graham Williams Co., Inc.
Atlanta, Georgia
C. T. Wilson
Construction Co., Inc.
Durham
C. C. Woods Construction Co.
Durham
Yadkin Brick Yards, Inc.
New London
Yancey Insurance Agency
Raleigh
*FIRMS AND/OR INDIVIDUALS
SPONSORING SCHOLARSHIPS:
Albert Q. Bell
Memorial Scholarship
Richard C. Bell
Raleigh
W. T. Fort, Sr.
Memorial Scholarship
Carolinas Roofing & Sheet
Metal Contractors Assoc.
Raleigh
Mid-State Tile Co. Scholarship
Lexington
The Producers Council, Inc.
N. C. Chapter
Charlotte
Ready Mixed Concrete Co.
Raleigh
Carolina Solite Corporation
Charlotte
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DA-LITE

Executive Electrol®
slide & movie screen!

Why put up with the inconvenience and clutter of
a portable screen in your conference room or office?
The modern, easy way to conduct a meeting using
projected visuals is to touch a switch and have a
hidden ceiling panel open, and the famous White
Magic® projection surface appear — ready to use.

When the show is over, touch the switch and
the surface rolls up automatically into its recess,
and the panel closes. So when it's not in use, it's
not in sight.

Sizes from 50" x 50" thru 12’ x 12" — from Da-
Lite, inventor of electric projection screens, and
maker of the most complete line of slide and movie
screens in the world. Ask us for details about the
Executive Electrol and other completely automatic
Da-Lite electric slide and movie projection screens.
Free architectural service and planning.

STONE’S SOUTHERN SCHOOL SUPPLY
329 West Hargett Street, Raleigh, N. C.
Phone: 919/833-3662
500 East Fourth Street, Charlotte, N. C.
Phone: 377-4515
In WATS 800-662-7757—no charge

N

NORTH CAROLINA ARCHITECT

35



ALL SYSTEMS

SAVE SURVEYING TIME & MONEY
WITH COGO

Triangle Engineering Associates
of Raleigh, N. C. selected Civil
Engineering Coordinate Geometry
(COGO) - - an engineering computing
aid available from Hydra Computer
Corporation - - to direct the survey-
ing work for Falls Church Sub-Divis-
ion. The project consisted of dividing
80 acres of land into approximately
200 residential building lots.

When the project was completed,
Glenn Barwick of Triangle Engineering
compared the time and cost for
COGO with conventional sub-division
surveying procedures. He discovered
15% savings in cost and 40% savings
in time!

COGO made this possible in
several ways. First, all coordinates
for the sub-division were established
by computer and then verified in the
field. This reduced the amount of
time and the number of personnel
needed to complete the on-sitework.
Second, the computer performed all
the repetitious calculations which
reduced the office time and personnel
cost.

COGO is just one of over 30
time and money saving programs
Hydra Computer Corporation has
available to assist the architect .and
the engineer. Just complete and re-
turn the coupon - - indicating the
project on which you would like as-
sistance - - for a complete list of
Hydra Engineering Computing aids.

NAME
FIRM NAME
ADDRESS
PROJECT
NORTH HILLS OFFICE MALL
ohDRA | aacegronon canouma
OORPORATION (919) 782-1051
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